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Report of the Directors
EERES

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results

The Group's loss for the year and the Group's financial position at 31 March
2017 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 97 to
152.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Lee George LAM (Chairman) (appointed on 5 June 2016)

Paul CHOW Man-yiu (Chairman) (retired on 4 June 2016)

Philip CHAN Ching-ho

CHEUK Wing-hing

Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching

Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

LAU Chun-kong

Edwin LEE Kan-hing

Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit

Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen

Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun

Duncan CHIU (appointed on 5 June 2016)

Gregg G. LI Ka-lok (appointed on 5 June 2017)

LING Kar-kan (appointed on 5 June 2017)

Rosana WONG Wai-man (appointed on 5 June 2017)

Elizabeth TSE Man-yee (resigned on 19 September 2016)

Douglas SO Cheung-tak (retired on 4 June 2017)

Peter YAN King-shun (retired on 4 June 2017)

YEUNG Tak-bun (alternate director to CHEUK Wing-hing)

CHAN Mable (alternate director to Elizabeth TSE Man-yee,
resigned on 1 August 2016)

Andrew LAl Chi-wah (alternate director to Elizabeth TSE Man-yee,
appointed on 1 August 2016 and resigned on 19 September 2016)

There being no provision in the Company's Articles of Association in
connection with the retirement of directors by rotation, all existing Directors
continue in office for the following year.
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Directors (continued)

The persons who were directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during
the year and up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated) were:

Herman LAM Heung-yeung
WONG Mei-wan

Ke-vin CHIN*

Marvin LAI*

* Resigned as a director of the relevant subsidiaries of the Company.

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Company's directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business
of the Company to which any of the Company’'s holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Méridien Cyberport, the facilities
management agreement and the system operation contract, no other
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries
were entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, the permitted indemnity
provision as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for the benefit of the directors of the Company was in force. The Company
has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the directors’ liabilities
in respect of any legal actions against its directors arising out of corporate
activities.
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Report of the Directors
ERRRS

Independent Auditor’s Report
RV e

Auditor

KPMG resigned as auditor of the Company and Ernst & Young were
appointed by the Directors to fill the causal vacancy so arising. A resolution
for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lee George LAM
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 September 2017
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Independent auditor’s report
To the member of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 97 to
152, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2017,
and the consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the report of
the Directors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB S

Information other than the consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

S Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FeREmMEMEE R ER

Year ended 31 March 2017 HZE2017FE3831HIEFEE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated 1ZEEFFETE st4r S A FEIRRAKIE
financial statements (continued) NEE @)

B BEEERSBRIEFEHM
HENESRERIGENEZRE

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial

information of the entities or business activities within the Group to

express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are Mgt BEEENGESHMFHRKRERE REVENUE_ EA _— 4 448,973,189 447,537,112
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the R HMEESEEE BEAATE Other net income Rt FER 4 24,710,416 A28
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. EEZTE - R BARMNEZE 473,683,605 468,212,327

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other

REEE2HEE -

HPRBEFHEE (HPEE) E5tHI5E

Expenses before public mission
activities expenses and depreciation

RetARERFENZHR
ERZ L

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit ~ #BE &R > UREARBEIR > Hhg Building management expenses YESEL H (142,966,235) (141,126,656)
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we — FEIRPITEEE 5T 58 Bl E A BRI HI M (E R &= Staff costs BT (87,487,756) (86,792,068)
identify during our audit. ARBZER © Government rent and rates H1FR R = Bl (14,090,906) (13,688,039)
Other operating expenses Hith&ES (76,727,617) (74,333,535)
Finance costs S E b (20,757) (29,751)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (321,293,271)  (315970,049)
Emst & Young AL ILLL LA Oper:ti:g S p: t:ic mifs:?n ﬁéigggﬁ& 152,390,334 152,242,278
Cartified Public Accountants @ gT activities expenses and depreciation g i ,390, 242,
. Public mission activities expenses NREEEI S 10 (104,170,514) (82,659,716)
Hong Kong 55
26 September 2017 201749526 Operating profit before depreciation REHERNEIERT 48,219,820 69,582,562
Depreciation HrEs (123,067,357) (117,713,101)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FRIR RIS 6 (74,847,537) (48,130,539)
Income tax FRi5% 11 - _
Loss and total comprehensive FREIEREEESIELEEE
loss for the year (74,847,537) (48,130,539)
96 Cyberport 2016/17 Annual Report SRS 2016/17 43R Q7



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
nv'F j?ﬂk;ﬂﬁ

As at 31 March 2017

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FalEmeHR

1R2017E3831H Year ended 31 March 2017 HE2017E3831HILEE

Share Capital Accumulated Total

capital reserve losses equity

2 BfHE R5tisiR e iaER

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENE E HKS HKS i i
Property, plant and equipment M ~ R R E 13 2,976,675,890 2,995,513,860 i BT A7 A7
Deferred rental receivables RIEFEWAR & 15,738,361 14,690,545
N - - At 1 April 2015 ? 5,302,729,607 1,937,771,035 3,364,958 574
Cyberport Macro Fund investment HIEEAR S EETKE 14 6,221,450 - L or hensi ﬁ"Zﬂgﬂjﬁz EIE— = [ !
Investments in securities BEKE 15 430,053,583 559,202,194 oss and total comprenensive. ISR SEEA
- loss for the year 4878 = (48,130,539) (48,130,539)
Total non-current assets JEmENE EAEEE 3,428,689,284 3,569,406,599 Transfer from development R EREESERE
CURRENT ASSETS TENE E maintenance fund to BARE
|nventor|es ﬁﬁ 595,761 450,650 Capita[ reserve 21 693,044 - 693,044
. =5
Trade receivables FEUSERTR 16 9,199,554 4,669,867 Transfer from facilities R EESEEE
. S ﬂ_:}—’ N 7 . = L
Prepaymento, deposits and ?Eﬁm)\f s R HAM maintenance fund to B
other receivables FEWRIE 17 19,059,547 20,670,852 capital reserve 22 9633700 - 9,633,700
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEU R M BA RIS 27(b) 2,348,448 1,892,385
Investments in securities EHEE 15 570,713,140 404,346,906 A3t Maroh 2016and I IR
Cash and bank balances e RIS 18 107,144,969 185,286,364 at 1 April 2016 20164818 5,313,056,351 (1,985,901,574) 3,327,154,779
. Loss and total comprehensive FREEREHEEE
Total current assets RENE ELEEE 709,061,419 617,317,024
2 loss for the year G - (74,847,537)  (74,847,537)
CURRENT LIABILITIES ;ﬁi}JEﬁE Transfer from development I EBHEERESEET
Trade payables Eﬁéﬂ%lﬁ X 35,472,265 45,693,220 maintenance fund to EwNEL
e ot ot st T e e ’ o2 | Aok
t t t y , ] , L
ental and other op05| S_ =IOFL Transfer from facilities HREEE TSR E
Amount due to the immediate N BRI A B FIE -
. maintenance fund to RN
holding company 27(b) 254,293,578 254,303,568 ol 2 29.975.074 29.975.074
Obligations under a finance lease B TH BRI 20 2,095,355 2,086,322 capital reserve 1713, 975,
Total current liabilities —— 431,675,925 403,705,952 At 31 March 2017 $201753H31H 5,363,136,217 (2,060,749,111) 3,302,387,108
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 277,385,494 213,611,072
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT wEERREEaE
LIABILITIES 3,706,074,778 3,783,017,671
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERENAE
Development maintenance fund EREEES 21 402,110,194 422,214,986
Facilities maintenance fund RIMEEES 22 - 29,975,074
Obligations under a finance lease RO SR 20 1,577,476 3,672,832
Total non-current liabilities JEREN & EEE 403,687,670 455,862,892
Net assets aE‘;?fE 3,302,387,108 3,327,] 54,779
EQUITY T
Share capital (%N 23 2 2
Capital reserve BAREE 5,363,136,217 5,313,056,351
Accumulated losses REtEE (2,060,749,111)  (1,985,901,574)
Total equity LT AR%E 3,302,387,108 3,327,154,779

Lee George LAM

Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

HxRE BEE
Director Director
EF EE

08 Cyberport 2016/17 Annual Report

IS 2016/17 3R

99



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 March 2017

B ZE2017F3831HIEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING EEEBNRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFEBNRERE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax IR BT (74,847,537) (48,130,539) Purchase of items of property, plant AN ~ s MR EIER
Adjustments for: HEEE and equipment (104,244,785) (30,831,766)
Depreciation ITE 123,067,357 117,713,101 Purchase of available-for-sale investment FEAR[EHERE (6,221,450) -
Realisation of government grants BN IR (1,542,594) (1572,510) Purchase of investments at fair value ﬁ%)\?ﬁ’&ﬁﬁﬁuﬂ\? o)
Interest income from held-to-maturity HAEZEIHRBENE through profit or loss "E (288,346,446) (88,601,324)
investments, net of amortisation of U AR S B Proceeds from sale and redemption of HEKERRFAEERIEAN
premium (15,465,384) (16,502,660) held-to-maturity investments EREHIA 87,509,285 63,094,475
Interest income from investments at A REES ABED Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYZE - KSR EIER
fair value through profit or loss BEMEWA (11,705,473) (8,603,452) property, plant and equipment Fri8sr1a 70,000 -
Net realised/unrealised losses on A RBEES ABERN Proceeds from sale and redemption of HEKELZA REESTA
investments at fair value through KRECEIR/REIR investments at fair value through B EPISTRIE
profit or loss E18 558 3,764,570 3,370,038 profit or loss 155,216,156 71,284,602
Interest income on bank deposits SRIT IR B (125,570) (1,142,171) Interest income received from: BUBFIEWA :
Impairment of trade receivables FEUREBR R 121,493 10,685 — Held-to-maturity investments —IEEZR3HAKE 20,604,488 20,819,001
Reversal of provision for impairment of  FEURBR BB O] — Investments at fair value through — AR BES AEEN
trade receivables (10,685) = profit or loss BE 10,749,613 8,459,299
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEYZE « 25 LR — Bank deposits — iR 130,489 1,137,803
property, plant and equipment, net BEM (W) /E5I8/358 (54,602) 161,442 Net cash flows (used in)/from 858 (FRA) /FREERN
Finance costs M ER 20,757 29,751 investing activities REREFEE (124,532,650) 45,362,090
Revaluation loss on investments KEHHEE 615,047 3,623,602 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING IR
23,837,379 48,957,287 ACTIVITIES
Increase in deferred rental receivables IEIEFEUR RS 1E N (1,047,816) (1,698,432) (Decrease)/increase in amount due to the (T B /A 5
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =8 (gm) /R (145,111) 32,374 immediate holding company GRZL) /3810 (9,990) 76,341
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  FEUREEZR (32 10) /3E/L (4,640,495) 400,565 Government grants received B BRTEES 1,081,740 691,859
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FETFNIE  FEFE MR Capital element of finance lease rentals ~ FREFAERASTRERZLD
deposits and other receivables IR/ (1B 0) 1,907,761 (7.542,522) payments (2,086,323) (2,077,329)
Increase in amounts due from fellow U EIEN N VNSRS Interest element of finance lease rentals ~ BREFA SRS RF S 285
subsidiaries (456,063) (68,038) payments (20,757) (29,751)
Decrease in trade payables EARERURL (10,220,955) (2805078) Net cash flows used in financing activities BATS;EBIFRFMYIRS FEIBEE (1,035,330) (1,338,880)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HEN B R EER
and accruals s/ GRiL) 35,767,102 (732.375) NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH RERREEEIER
Increase in rental and other deposits 5 R EHAIEEIE N 2,424,783 2,424,113 AND CASH EQUI,VALENTS £ ;) /t”bg,?%ﬁ = {18,11,395) 82971104
Net cash flows from operating activities & ;EEIIREREFEE 47,426,585 38,967,894 Ca;z;g:;zs; 32::/alents e FORRERRE SRS 185,286,364 102,295,260
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHRNIRE RIS S EIEH
THE END OF YEAR 18 107,144,969 185,286,364
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH RERREEEIEBRESRI
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances WE MIETERF 107,144,969 185,286,364
100 Cyberport 2016/17 Annual Report BBE 2016/17 R348 101



Notes to Financial Statements
BAFE IR MISE

Corporate information

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
registered office of the Company is located at Units 1102-1104, Level
11, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is to support and promote
innovation and technology development in Hong Kong through
the creation of a comprehensive ecosystem of digital technology
companies.

With a vision to build Cyberport as a main force in developing the
digital technology industry as a key economic driver of Hong Kong (the
“Vision"), the public mission of the Company are anchored on three
strategic directions:

— Nurtures youth and start-ups by providing comprehensive
entrepreneurship programmes and early stage funding;

— Scales digital technology companies with Cyberport's global
network; and

= Connects enterprises, SMEs and the public in fostering digital
economy.

Under the Group's relentless pursuit of excellence, the Group takes
a pragmatic and comprehensive approach in realising its Vision. To
ensure the line-up of services is dynamic and flexible in meeting the
needs of budding technology entrepreneurs, investor community and
industry talents, the Company actively builds strong partnerships
with leaders from technology industry, academia, research institutes
and professional bodies.

During the year, to further extend the Group's entrepreneurial
support to scalable start-ups, the Company has launched the
Cyberport Macro Fund (“CMF") for Hong Kong-based digital
entrepreneurs. With an initial size of HK$200 million, the CMF
aims to accelerate the growth of digital technology start-ups. As
an investment fund that targets to co-invest in Cyberport digital
entrepreneurs with other private and public investors as seed
to Series A stage funding, the CMF also aims to encourage the
development of a venture capital ecosystem for start-ups in Hong
Kong. Further details of the investment made up to the end of the
reporting period are included in note 14 to the financial statements.
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2.1

Corporate information (continued)

The Group has established various teams (“Operating Teams”) to
achieve the above public mission. The expenses incurred by the
Operating Teams that contribute to the successful running of the
public mission activities are disclosed in note 10 to the financial
statements.

The Company is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong
Cyberport Development Holdings Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and is wholly-owned by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR") via The Financial
Secretary Incorporated.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company'’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Issued ordinary
Name incorporation share capital
2 MR ERITHiERS
Cyberport Macro Fund Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1
B 1787t
CMF One Limited Hong Kong HK$1
E) 1787t
CMF Two Limited Hong Kong HK$1
B 1787t

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and an available-for-sale investment which has
been measured at fair value. These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BFEERRIMIE
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 1 RNEE @) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 {EBUELE =)
Basis of consolidation SAEE Basis of consolidation (continued) EEEE(E)
The consolidated financial statements include the financial RERBRREEARBRENBA If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) ik 7 £ [ e 25 S i BB /1 ) R 2 s e
statements of the Company and its subsidiary (collectively referred to B (BT AEE ) REE2017F38 the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) B4R IFER)ZMNBATNEE (8
as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017. A subsidiary is an 31 H IEEEMBFEIRE - B AES the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the EEE) REE 0 (MEAFFERER
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled HAEEBEERBEZEFNER (8 cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises RYBR 1B K (i) A A e N 50 82 FY R 51
by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has EEBEER) c EXAEEESH (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any HMEELE  REZENEWRENA R
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee RS T T EE A B ) A (O] 3R R 3 L B investment retained and (jii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit BE > (TR TAEENANMER
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the NERENEBLREEENEEE or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised R (i) B3 P E A F I E 4 B Rk
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to HEKELNE DT EZZLIR (B in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or 4 o SLHTE R E 2 B N FEER
direct the relevant activities of the investee). AT AR B IS ERIEE H ETERE retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be HAEBEGIDETDEEBER
FRIRA FE N MIREFHER)) By > R required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or (REEF (NEE) » HERRERE
S o liabilities. BUERMBEENBEMEERER
A o
When the Group has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of EXREEREERBEEEERIEERT
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all B LIS T RESEB IR » REE 2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 2.2 FHHERRIEEE

relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Group, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries above. A change in the ownership interest of
a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Investment Entities.: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interest in Joint Operations

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Disclosure Initiative
Clarification of Acceptance Methods

and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
(2011) Statements

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle

The adoption of the above new and revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these consolidated financial statements.
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2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions?

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture*
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses!

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property?

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs®

2014-2016 Cycle

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

6 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 2018, as

appropriate

2.3 BlEFERHKRERNEBME
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. Further
information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS
9, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project
to replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The
standards introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018. The Group performed a high-
level assessment of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. This
preliminary assessment is based on currently available information
and may be subject to changes arising from further detailed analyses
or additional reasonable and supportable information being made
available to the Group in the future. The Group does not expect
that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial assets. It expects to
continue measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held at
fair value.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA
issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the implement issues on
identifying performance obligations, application guidance on principal
versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018. Under HKFRS 15,
an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with
specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 15.
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2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the potential
impact of the application of HKFRS 15 and it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the
detailed review is performed by the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases was issued by the HKICPA in May 2016. HKFRS
16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases. For lessee accounting, the
standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires
a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. For
lessor accounting, the standard substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019. Based on the Group's
undiscounted operating lease commitment of HK$25,304,945 as set
out in note 25(b) to the financial statements, the adoption is expected
to have an impact on the financial position and financial performance
of the Group and the detailed assessment is still in progress.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will result in
additional disclosure to be provided in the financial statements. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 April 2017.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and an available-for-sale investment at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation technigues for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation technigues for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial
assets and deferred tax assets), the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person:

0

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

0]

(iif)

(iv)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;,

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements
AR R MEE

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Over the period

Buildings of the lease
Building services and support facilities 10%
Information technology facilities 20%
Centres equipment 20% - 33'/:%
Leasehold improvements 10%
Furniture and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Financial assets and investments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and investments (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income and
gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and investments (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. Held-
to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss, or until the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss in
other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the
ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “"pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when there
is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in @ subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss
- measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement - loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs of
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of each reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

2.4 FEGEHHERNE @)

FRiS#8

FRSM BRI IEIERR IR » BRIE
mIMNESRIR R Z RSB m I (B
fthEEWA BN EmE ) D o

AR KB T AR 2 BN E E &
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LEEBZIREK (RIRE) » LERBE
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BEERBRAEEE > NSRS
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EEMRIBE SR A BRI B R E 2R
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BIERBGERIT BRI E
A IR S G AR EITRE
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BB EORRE > BER
ERBRT KA AR AR AR
[ o

120

Cyberport 2016/17 Annual Report

BEESS 2016/17 3R 121



Notes to Financial Statements
AR R MEE

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

2.4 FETHEERRE @

FRiSHR (&)
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(i) rental income and contingent rentals, on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the lease and in the accounting period in
which they are earned, respectively;

(i) management fee income, when the services are rendered;

(i) income from hotel operation, upon provision of services;

(iv)  car park fee and information technology facilities income, when
the services are rendered and facilities are utilised:;

(v)  income from leasing of centre facilities, when the facilities are
utilised;

(vi) other incidental income and services income, when the income
is entitled and services are rendered; and

(vii) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

2.4 FEGEHHERNE @)
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees' basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

Foreign currency transactions

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Group’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions.

Significant accounting estimates

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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Significant accounting estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group performs review for impairment of non-financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable.

The Group reviews certain indicators of potential impairment of these
assets such as reported sales and purchase prices, market demand
and general market conditions. The Group considers "Buildings
held for rental”, "Hotel building” and "Building services and support
facilities” as a portfolio of assets and identifies the cash-generating
unit to which the portfolio of assets belongs by referring to the
valuation performed by independent external valuers, after taking
into consideration the net income allowing for reversionary potential.
The assumptions adopted in the property valuation are based on
the market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period,
with reference to current market sales prices and the appropriate
capitalisation rate.

Based on the Group's best estimates, no provision for impairment
loss on the non-financial assets is necessary.

Investments in securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on initial classification of
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity if the Group has the intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity; or at fair value
through profit or loss if the investments are managed by external
fund managers and their performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, and information about the investments is provided internally
on that basis to the Group's key management.

For held-to-maturity investments, the Group evaluates its intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group
fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for specific
circumstances - for example, selling an insignificant amount close
to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire class as
available-for-sale. The investments would, therefore, be measured at
fair value not at amortised cost.

For investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
Group engages external fund managers to manage the investment
portfolio which is evaluated and reported internally on a fair value
basis. Accordingly, these investments are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss and are stated at fair value with subsequent
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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3. Significant accounting estimates (continued) BEARgHEE @ Revenue and other net income 4, YABHMUAEEE
Estimation uncertainty (continued) HHAEEEE (B) An analysis of revenue and other net income is as follows: U A B E IR AP REZ AN -

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group determines the praovision for impairment of trade and
other receivables based on the credit history or the financial position
of its customers and the current market conditions. The Group
assesses the adequacy of provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables at the end of each reporting period and significant
level of judgement is required in determining the adequacy of such
provision.

Fair value of unlisted equity investment

The unlisted equity investment has been valued based on the
recent market transaction price. The fair value of the unlisted equity
investment at 31 March 2017 was HK$6,221,450. Further details are
included in note 14 to the financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from
change or improvements in the provision of services, or from a
change in the market demand for the service output of the asset, the
expected usage of the asset, the expected physical wear and tear, the
care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based
on the experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in
a similar way. Adjustment of depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
based on changes in circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

FEUSRR TR B ELfth FE U R IR 2 iRAE

FAEBRRBHER ZEEELHTH
AR FT B IR T T U 2R B T FE WU AR R B L
ftIEWRIA Z BERH - ZEESE
B IR E AR UER R EL At UL
TIERERBREDITE  MEERRE
BRI ERAIEHEARFIE

LR EZ AREE

JE LA ERBIAT SRR E
EIT(HE o 1R2017F3831H » I E
MIRAKE 2 AN EE 6,221,508
TC o E— T HBHN M ERKRMEE
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UEER FTREZELREEES
e

Revenue N
Rental income HEUWA 216,704,284 210,588,164
Building management income MEBEWA
- Management fee income —EEBERA 85,195,492 84,256,008
- Car park fee income —RBEEKA 13,506,822 11,736,728
- Other facilities income — H=E A 19,432,099 20,973,213
Income from hotel operation RS RS A 113,926,173 119,421,577
Information technology facilities income BRI EZHEWA 98,963 481,439
Other incidental income HETEIT A 109,356 79,983
448,973,189 447 537,112
Other net income HAUW A FRE
Interest income from held-to-maturity FEZIHALE Y
investments, net of amortisation of FEUA > MNFREE
premium of HK$4,023,765 (HK$4,213,416) #554,023,76587T
(4,213.416787T) 15,465,384 16,502,660
Interest income from investments at fair value  IZAREEFT AR Z
through profit or loss KEZFEWA 11,705,473 8,603,452
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZHBWA 125,570 1,142,171
Services income from fellow subsidiaries RIZMEB AT Z ARFESUA 4,201,654 4,201,654
Net realised/unrealised losses on investments IZ AR BETAEBGZEEZ
at fair value through profit or loss BESR/ REIR R P AR (3,764,570) (3,370,038)
Foreign exchange differences, net SMNE = REIFEE (3,103,780) (6,800,537)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYZE « 23K,
plant and equipment REIEE 2 W 70,000 =
Reversal of provision for impairment of BEIEBERR Z
trade receivables BERE 10,685 -
Sundry income FEIEUTA - 395,853
24,710,416 20,675,215

Note:

PfaE

On 24 May 2000, a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam
("Residential Portion”) was assigned to Hong Kong Cyberport (Ancillary Development)
Limited ("HKCADL"), a fellow subsidiary, by Hong Kong Cyberport Development Holdings
Limited ("the immediate holding company"). Pursuant to the services agreement dated
25 October 2003 entered into between the Company and HKCADL, a fixed monthly
services income of HK$125,600 was received from HKCADL commencing from November
2003 for the provision of services by the Company to facilitate the operation of the
Residential Portion. The fee was revised to HK$200,000 commencing from April 2006 and
to HK$261,000 commencing from May 2008. Total amount received during the year was
HK$3,132,000 (2016: HK$3,132,000).

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered into between the
Company and Skillful Limited, a fellow subsidiary, a monthly services income was
received for the provision of information technology and telecommunications services to
the Residential Portion. Total amount received during the year was HK$1,069,654 (2016:
HK$1,069,654).

FR20005F5 8240 » SRS EZREBIZERARL
S (TEHZERAT)) aRAKB AR S BHEE
B (WEBERE) BRAR (THKCADLY) #t H &3k
RIDAR S P 8969 SR HL AR — & 3 Tt (TE=E
EZR431) o 120034104 25 B AA T EAHKCADL
B 2R W 0 A RBRMETED 2 EER
{HARFS » B20034F 118 FtaS B MHKCADLYER
125,600 70 Z B E RFBULA © B20065F 48 K&
2008458 #E > IthIBUNE 3 BEST %44 B 200,000
BT 261,000/87T ° AFEE B UAREEA3,132,000
BT (2016%F © 3,132,000787T) ©

R#E2005F 3B 12B A A B H[F & [ B A &
Skillful Limited 28 5] 2 BRF5 9% > &<A BRI 1E
IO IRME AR R BARF mE A WEARES
A o REEBUNAREEZ1,069,654787T (20164 -
1,069,654787T) ©
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5. Staff costs

An analysis of staff costs is as follows:

5. BEIMZ

BTHRAZDHAT :

Salaries and allowances S REES 95,084,816 91,558,818
Unutilised annual leave KEHER 2,424,568 1,641,257
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRI HER 4,453,490 4,328,642
Staff benefits and other staff costs BT EMNEEME TS 1,878,751 951,689
103,841,625 98,480,406

Analysed into: DifA
Hotel JBIE 53,942,073 53,934,639
Corporate office NEIHERR 33,545,683 32,857,429
87,487,756 86,792,068
Operating Teams (note 10) EEE R (fEE10) 16,353,869 11,688,338
103,841,625 98,480,406

6. Loss before tax

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Rental income less outgoings of

6. BRIRAIESIR

I ER

AT IAINER

FE[ZFRATBERE NG/ (Gt A)

Directors’ remunerations

The emoluments of the Directors of the Group disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation are as follows:

7. EEME

REEB AT RGIE38MIFRLAF]
(WBESMDER) BB 28KE
ZHRERESEMEIT

Directors' fees

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Discretionary bonuses

Retirement scheme contributions

EElE -

Fid SRR EYER :
BB TEAL :
RS BIER -

Five highest paid employees

Details of the remuneration of the five non-director highest paid

employees are as follows:

8. HuER#HES

T

AR FEEREHEEZMEFIEU

Salaries and allowances e SoRRL 12,185,088 11,537,768
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIRERET 8RR 180,000 180,000
12,365,088 11,717,768

The number of the non-director highest paid employee whose

MENFUTBEZIFEFTRSHE

G 657 1605 (G T, A G B 12,606,1 06385 remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: BZ8B8WTF
(2016%F : 12,114,00577T) (204,078,178) (198,474,159)

Cost of inventories FE/RAS 15,578,728 15,599,794 adl il
Auditor's remuneration TZ SN &= 208,000 430,600 HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 752 1,500,00078 75 - 1
Impairment of trade receivables FEU AR Z RUE 121,493 10,685 HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001787522,000,00078 7T 3 2
Reversal of provision for impairment of trade ~ #[E]FEULERFR > HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001787522,500,00078 7T - -

receivables BER (10,685) = HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001787523,000,00078 75 - 1
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of property, HEYZE « HesRREER HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001787523,500,00058 75 1 -

plant and equipment, net z (W) /5187348 (54,602) 161,442 HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 78752 4,000,00078 7T 1 1
Finance costs: MBEA 5 5
Finance charges on obligations under a finance BYEFHERIEZ

lease BAFS S 20,757 29,751
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9. Government rent and rates 9. hiEREM 11. Income tax (continued) FRiEMR &)

An analysis of government rent and rates is as follows: WA RZEZ DT A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to the loss before tax BRAR RSB AERESE ZRIRA]
at the Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax amount at the Group's E1E 2 IR R IR AR E B B[R =X
effective tax rate is as follows: SRR HIRUWT -

Hotel TS 1,464,800 1,674,034

Corporate office NEIRER 12,626,106 12,114,005
Loss before tax AR B ETE 74,847,537 48,130,539

14,090,906 13,688,039 FRRIRS A ( ) ( )
v s i R o
GG Teas (e 10 B ER (W2510) 433,273 446,880 Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory tax BEBEEMREI6LWTEZ
rate of 16.5% RIBHE R (12,349,844) (7,941,539)
14,524,179 Ut Income not subject to tax HBIERR Z A (20,719) (299,555)
" Tax losses not recognised RIESBZ MIBESE 12,370,563 8,241,094
- - . - mgm l'\m :
10. Public mission activities expenses 10. ATfEREENSZH Tax amount at the Group’s effective tax rate ik WA R I04E _ _
All direct and indirect expenses incurred for the primary and AR B BRI FEIRARM &
dominant purpose of public mission and that contribute to the 1 PRI R IR A R B en E B PT EE £ 12. Deferred tax IRIEIRIE

11.

successful running of public mission activities as described in note 1
to the financial statements are considered as public mission activities

2B ERREES HIIRE B/ AR
fEmmEBT - AR HEE !

expenses. Such expenses comprise:

Staff costs BT 16,353,869 11,688,338
Information technology facilities BilR R EER

maintenance fees 27,854,812 27,328,963
Financial assistance to industry start-ups EERNEIEIMEES =i 24,072,657 15,585,096
Programme expenses (seminars, trainings, BB (st ~ 5Bl

competitions, workshops and exhibitions) ' TEGRES) 25,863,189 24,450,620
Government rent and rates 3 B = B 433,273 446,880
Public mission communications N EeE 10,652,440 2,637,354
Operating expenses K H 5,896,496 7,501,721
Recovery of direct expenses (including Wel B i (BT

government grants of HK$1,542,594 #EBE1,542,59487T

(2016: HK$1,572,510)) (20164 : 1,57251087T)) (6,956,222) (6,979,256)

104,170,514 82,659,716

Income tax 11. FRiS#R

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2016: Nil).

AR AERREETENSBELES
EIFERIER] > A ERL B BF BN
EH B (20164F & 4®) o

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
are as follows:

FR 0 BIEREE EMEEZ S
T

Losses  Depreciation
available for in excess of
offsetting related
against future  depreciation
taxable profits allowance Others

QiR i frEsh
RIARFEERI BRE
mrlzER  BEZEE

HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 April 2015 120154818 (64,003,388) 64,237,960 (234572) -
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to profit or loss  ERF 8 (51 A) /H0k
during the year ZIEERIE (15317908) 15208574 109,334 -
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 12016838313 K%
2016FE4F1H (79,321,296) 179,446,534 (125,238) -
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to profit or loss  ERFEE (51 A) /H0k
during the year ZIEIEIRIE (22,152,767) 22,162,629 (9,862) -

At 31 March 2017 1201738315 (101,474,063) 101,609,163 (135,100) -

MR EAEEEDBBRKERN

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences

arising from tax losses carried forward due to uncertainty of
realisation of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profits. As at 31 March 2017, the Group had unrecognised tax
losses of approximately HK$2,097,000,000 (2016: approximately
HK$2,022,000,000). The tax losses have no expiry date and are yet to
be agreed by the Inland Revenue Department.

mAEIREAREBANE > WARE
CREBEEMEE2EREERR
EEMRMIBEE o B E2017F3 8 31
B> AEEHREARTHEIBZNEES
8 492,097,000,000 7 7T (2016 4 & &9
2,022,000,00078 %) © fRIEESIEL R
H - BEGRERMES
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13. Property, plant and equipment

13. ¥ - B R=E

13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

13. ¥ « BB R=E®

Notes: PEE -
Building
services  Information 0) On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No. 8969 0) 2000558 22H » EAREBF B AR
Buildings Hotel ~ and support technology Centres Leasehold  Furniture and Motor at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the Group for a term of 50 years at a lump sum £ B H — 1R AL F B BN R AR 2 P 3 B
held for rental bullding facilities facilities equipment  Improvements equipment vehicles initial premium of HK$1,000 and an annual rent of an amount equal to 3% of the 89695 = it » — M 13 iE B 251,000
?’tfﬁti% rateable value of the said Lot from time to time. BIT ) FRARE > MEFENHEEE
i i T AT R A SR A
HKS HKS HKS 1E3% °
#n #n &
((;;)}e[[”;])] On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement ("Sub-lease R20005F5 8248 » ANA BB EREERA
bl Agreement”) with the immediate holding company whereby a portion of the BEI— Mo MEHE (ToMHEBZEL) ° R
31 March 2017 017E3B31H Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (“Cyberport Portion”) is sub- BZoEWmE  AABRERZERAT
leased to the Company from the immediate holding company at nil rental. RS ER AR IR AR E Py it £ 8969 SR H Hp—
At31 March 2016 and R016E3R31BR oyt (THEEHBE S 1) - RABEA
1 April 2016 WIbEBIE XA o
Cost i 3557123776 274937912 1,173977,211 236,249,498 60,886,254 80,518,905 156,834,546 1,018,019  5541,546,181
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (923,708,426)  (71,464,008) (1,151,441535) (226,641810)  (60,886,254)  (27,067,964)  (83,826,319) (996,005) (2,546,032,321) (ii) The buildings are situated on the leasehold land granted. (ii) BT A AR AR S ) o
Net carrying amount REFE 2,633,415,350 203,473,904 22,535,136 9,607,688 - 53,450,941 73,008,227 22,014 2,995,513,860
At 1 Aprl 2016, et of M0 (i)~ Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship Centre and (i)  AFROREHBNHBEEILBRTE
accumulated depreciation NBRTE 2,633,415,350 203,473,904 22,535,736 9,607,688 - 53,450,941 73,008,227 22,014 2,995,513,860 Technology Centre funded by government grant and used for the purpose of the THEBZAEZEROLMNBRE PO ZE
Additions e - - 30,306,850 20,104,792 - 36,361,531 16,761,612 710,000 104,244,785 designated projects. o
Depreciation provided during ~ EA5HEHTE
the year (77,142968)  (5955334)  (3488219)  (5661,984) - (815063) (2252813 (140347)  (123,067,357) (V) Asat 31 March 2017, the fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with (V) 2017438318 » HEHRIEE (EE
i &= - - - - - -
Disposal e (15,398) (15,398) the associated building services and support facilities) amounted to HK$6,602 HERAZ B AR B ST IR Bk ) 2 R A BE
At31 March 2017, net of RUITEHIR3NE million (2016: HK$6,492 million). The aggregate carrying value of such assets #366.02(2 87T (20165F © 6492/ 7T) ©
accumulated dEDFECiatiOH }mﬁ%ﬁm% 2,556,272,385 197,518,570 49,354,307 24,050,496 - 81,661,837 67,226,628 591,667  2,976,675,890 amounted to HK$2,606 million (2016: HK$2,656 million). The fair value of the SRS FE > ABRR T 24 26.06E 8 7T (2016
At31 March 2017: ROEB3A buildings held for rental (together with the associated buildings services and F 1265688 7T) o ZERFHAET
Cost B 3557123716 274937912 1,197,781,246 256,354,290 60,886,254 116,880,436 171,780,908 1,338,151  5,637,082,971 support facilities) as at 31 March 2017 was determined based on a valuation (EEHEBZETREESESHT) P
Accumulated depreciation LiHE (1,000,851,391)  (77,419,362) (1,148,426,937) (232,303,794)  (60,886,254)  (35,218,599)  (104,554,280) (746,484) (2,660,407,081) carried out by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent 2017463831 A A A BEHREIS T SE
Net carrying amount REFE 2,556,272,385 197,518,570 49,354,307 24,050,496 - 81,661,837 67,226,628 591,667  2,976,675,890 professional valuer. E(EMS NERYEER (F8) BR
31 March 2016 0165F3A31H AEETZEEET
At 1 April 2015: F015E4E1R The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated BEH ST (ERERAZ EFIRFSE Y
Cost B 3557,123776 216931912 1,159978,681 235,556,454 60,886,254 75,485,808 150,109,754 1018019 5515096,658 building services and support facilities) falls within Level 3 of the fair value EBRW 2AABEBRAABELESR
Accumulated depreciation LiHE (846565460)  (65008674) (1,149969676)  (221561857) (608862540 (19695776)  (63853,689) (965,480)  (2428986,866) hierarchy and is determined using the income capitalisation approach by Mo Sk DIRARABE EARE
Net carrying amount FEEE 2710558316 209429238 10,009,005 13994597 - 55790032 86,256,065 72539 3,084,109,792 discounting the expected rental income using capitalisation rate adjusted for the T AAARAEMEREFTECEER
At 1 April 2015 et of SONEEEE quality and location of the buildings. HBEAE R 2 EAC L R FREATE &
accumulated depreciation IBZtE 2710558316 209429238 10,009,005 13994597 = 55790032 86,206,065 72539 3086109792 WWASTIRETE ©
Additions e - - 13998590 693,044 - 5033097 7581880 - 21306611
Depreciation provided during ~ ER3HEHTE v) At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of furniture and (v) RBEHER  AERREMNERER
the year (17142966} (5,935,334 (1.471.859) (5,079.953) - (7372108)  (2080276) (0828) (17713101 equipment held under finance lease of the Group was HK$4.2 million (2016: BzBMRREZREBEAL208ETT
Disposal. e = - - - - - (189442 - (189.442) HK$6.1 million). (20164 © 610EETT) ©
At31 March 2016, net of Ra016E3E318 -
accumulated depreciation TRRE 2633415350 203473904 225373% 9,607,688 - B3AA09AT 73008227 20014 2995513840
At31 March 2016; R016E3A31A :
Cost A& 3957,123776 206931912 1173977211 236,249,498 60,886,254 80,518.905 156,834,546 1018019 5,541,546,181
Accumulated depreciation ~~ E5tE (923708426)  (11.464008) (1151441535 (226641810) (60886256 (27067964  (83826319) (996,005)  (2546,032.321)
Net carrying amount RETE 2633415350 203473904 22535736 9,607,688 - 53,450,941 73,008,227 2014 2995513860
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14. Cyberport Macro Fund Investment

15.

14. BERIRERERERIRE

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value

FLMRAKRE » BAREE 6,221,450 -

During the year, to further extend the Group's entrepreneurial
support to scalable start-ups, the Group has launched the CMF
for Hong Kong-based digital entrepreneurs. With an initial size of
HK$200 million, the CMF aims to accelerate the growth of digital
technology start-ups. As an investment fund that targets to co-invest
in Cyberport digital entrepreneurs with other private and public
investors as seed to Series A stage funding, the CMF also aims to
encourage the development of a venture capital ecosystem for start-
ups in Hong Kong.

The above investment consists of investment in equity securities
which was designated as available-for-sale financial assets and has
no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

Investments in Securities

FR o BE—DIIAEERH IR
PRIEXZRIESE  cEBERAE
BB XXM EB IS BREREE
T o HIRAEREREESVINRER
#2EET > TEBHEIER A
TERBER - FIEBREAFES
En—BRERES  SEEHMBA
RABREE L FIREHNIGE 2 5
A REBTFREREUEAR
ME > TEESR BBV EEERE
RIER o

iR EREEE AR HEETME
EBEEEIHAREEMRZ RE
BHRE °

Non-current assets JERENE E
Held-to-maturity investments EEZRRERKRE 430,053,583 559,202,194
Current assets MAEE
Held-to-maturity investments BHEEIHHRKRE 124,966,240 88,059,239
Investments at fair value through profit or loss R ARBEST ARG ZKE 445,746,900 316,287,667
570,713,140 404,346,906
1,000,766,723 963,549,100

15. Investments in Securities (continued) 15.

(a) Held-to-maturity investments

EHERE W
BEEIMARE

Listed fixed interest debt securities EBLHEEFNE
in Hong Kong B S 531,872,373 600,607,945
Unlisted debt securities JE EHEKES 23,147,450 46,653,488
Net book amount BRESE 555,019,823 647,261,433
The net book amount is analysed as follows: BEEEEDTAT :
Maturing over one year H—EL EFIEA 430,053,583 559,202,194
Maturing within one year R—FERNEE 124,966,240 88,059,239
555,019,823 647,261,433
Market value of listed debt securities EhEEES 2 mE 533,590,319 603,743,939
Market value of unlisted but quoted debt ELEHEEREER
securities EHromE 23,257,827 46,611,452
556,848,146 650,355,391
(b) Investments at fair value through profit or loss BAREENAEBEZIRE

Listed fixed interest debt securities: EHEENEERKES
- In Hong Kong —&BIEN 119,141,970 83,203,222
- Outside Hong Kong — HEIESN 240,902,589 220,538,753
Unlisted but quoted fixed interest JEEMEEREBEEF S
debt securities B 5 85,702,341 12,545,692
445,746,900 316,287,667

16. Trade receivables

16. FEURBRTX

Trade receivables EESEH 10,069,383 5,428,888
Impairment BE (869,829) (759,021)
9,199,554 4,669,867
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16.

Trade receivables (continued)

The credit period given to customers is generally 0 to 30 days.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancement over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are

as follows:

16.

FEUSBRTX (&)

MTIERZEEH—MRA0ENXR -
7 &= B ot 1B R AR 2 ARl EL SR Wi [ 2 B U
RIELEEEREERERE - IS
PSR EEEEHER - AEEL
B H AR A AR R
ST HMIS SR FHER o YRR
AR o

FEWARTURIE R BE ST ¢

At beginning of year =) 759,021 1,421,649
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) SREEE (f5%6) 121,493 10,685
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) R [Clp BRI (Fiste) (10,685) -
Amount written off as uncollectible s 2~ eI UKol 2 I8 - (673,313)
869,829 759,021

An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor

collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

M ARAB B! S B BT 1R (B 2 FE U AR =R
ZERECOTUNT ¢

Neither past due nor impaired KRBT RRE 4,101,963 1,316,826
Less than one month past due BHE DR 1@ B 4,672,445 2,815,813
One to three months past due BRI E3E A 416,575 424,668
Over three months past due BHA3E B U & 8,571 112,560

9,199,554 4,669,867

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the Directors are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

RERATEREZBRTERSZIR
RN R B R AR o

BRREREEZ BUGRRES TRE
ERMFRIFFECHZBUTRE
% o IRIFBEEER - EFBRHBEA
ZEEERERERE REAREEE
RN ESEAEE BARAGEHRNRES
BES - G(EI

17.

18.

19.

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

17.

FAIIRRIA « Bk R H fth FE U TR
15

Prepayments FERIE 4,666,568 3,598,833
Deposits Be 4,506,960 5,068,642
Other receivables HihpElg g 10,086,019 12,003,377

19,059,547 20,670,852

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. Financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.

Cash and bank balances

18.

FHEERERRTERE - sTAL
iR SREERT EBALHRY
FEUGRRIEA R ©

RERPITHET

Cash and bank balances IR RIBITEE 84,678,485 147,444,907
Time deposits TEHERR 22,466,484 37,841,457
107,144,969 185,286,364

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between
1 to 3 months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earns interest at the respective time deposit rates. The
bank balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

Rental and other deposits

Included in rental deposits are amounts of HK$49,076,395 (2016:
HK$42,576,790) which are not expected to be settled within one year.

19.

IRTTIREREES BIRITERFRLUF
B RBEF R - EHERGTEAE
B 2 AP IR B KMIE » F RS
FIEMEARAS » WAKBEZEHE
A RGBS o RITEFREMRE
MEANTRTRENCHRAEERYT
Z3R1T -

HERHMEE

HeERecOEBEHATN —EARE
i 7 3 IE 49,076,395 7 75 (2016 4 :
42,576,79037T) ©
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20. Obligations under a finance lease

The Group leases certain of its information technology facilities. The

lease is classified as finance lease and has remaining lease terms of

1.75 years.

At 31 March 2017, the total future minimum lease payments under

finance lease and their values were as follows:

20.

PR TH B KIE

SEEHEEE TENR R o %58
EWRDIEARERE > G TNHEA
1.754F

-

7201738310 » EHEEETZ

RRREEENTHBEREENT :

Present Present

value of value of

Minimum Minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments

RIEHE REHE REHE =EAE

REN (BE IRIBE IR E

2017 2016 2017 2016

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

#T BT HIT BT

Amount payable: FEfIFIE

Within 1 year —FR 2,107,080 2,107,080 2,095,355 2,086,322

In the second year BTE 1,580,310 2,107,080 1,577,476 2,095,355

In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-ZEhE (AREEME) - 1580,310 - 1577477

Total minimum finance lease payments  R{EREHE [ Z4EE 3,687,390 5,794,470 3,672,831 5,759,154
Future finance charges KRB EH (14,559) (35,316)
Total net finance lease payable R EREREITIERE 3,672,831 5,759,154
Portion classified as current liabilities D 1EAREEEZ D (2,095,355) (2,086,322)
Non-current portion IERENEE D 1,577,476 3,672,832

21.

22,

Development Maintenance Fund

It represents a fund received by the Group in accordance with the
terms of a project agreement entered into among the Company, the
immediate holding company, HKCADL, Pacific Century Cyberworks
Limited (now renamed as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited
on 17 May 2000 (the “Project Agreement”). Pursuant to the Project
Agreement, the purpose of the fund is for upkeep and maintenance of
the common telecommunications, media and information technology
facilities available to the tenants and visitors (the “Shared Cyberport
facilities”).

Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the costs
of the acquired assets will be transferred from the Development
Maintenance Fund (“DMF") account to the Capital Reserve account in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy.

During the year, Shared Cyberport facilities of HK$20,104,792 (2016:
HK$693,044) were acquired and funded by the DMF. Accordingly,
this amount has been transferred from the DMF to Capital Reserve
account.

Facilities Maintenance Fund

On 5 September 2006, the Company, HKCADL, and the immediate
holding company entered into a third agreement to amend the Project
Agreement of the Cyberport Project with PCCW Limited and Cyber-
Port Limited. Pursuant to the third agreement, a maintenance fund of
HK$50,000,000 for the purpose of maintenance and upgrading of the
Cyberport Portion was received by the Group (“Facilities Maintenance
Fund”’, "FMF").

Upon acquisition of the assets, the cost of the replaced assets will be
transferred from the FMF account to the Capital Reserve account in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy.

During the year, building services and support facilities of
HK$29,975,074 (2016: HK$9,633,700) were funded by the FMF.
Accordingly, this amount has been transferred from the FMF to
Capital Reserve account.

21.

22.

BREEES

ZEETEAEEREHEAF
BHEZERAT ~ HKCADL ~ BRI 8155
FHERAE RBERBREBRA
8)) REFHBER AT 2000545817
HETER:] 2 SE Bt 8imE (T5r 2015
%) ZIERFTEN 2 B o IRIRZsT
2% > ZIEESREREREBRE
A KRR ERAZEAEN - FiEk
BRI (TSRS A L RAE]) o

RIERERZ G5HEER > RIEEER
HELFERE  CBEEEZMAE
RitEREERS (RREEES))
IRPEETERRHERS o

FE A 0 & RE 420,104,792 7T (2016
IF 1 69304478 7T) 2 BNE B R
EHEEAEEESEBETRMES -
At > ZERIEEREREEESE
BEERGHERE ©

A IE RS

L2006 FE985H » AAE] ~ HKCADL
REZZERAREENRRAERAT
REMBERABZEIE =D HEU
EETENE BT 21RE c BIBZEFE=D
ek > NEMBES 5000882
HEESIE > BIEREREEBENS
BED (MERMEEEE]) °

REAEBRZESBR > RBESE
& WEMZ BENAR BRIEHEE
EoWETERRHERS o

FE N o & RE 4299750747 7T (2016
£F 1 9,633,700/87T) ZIEFRB KR 1E
R RREEECESIREES -
It > ZERIEE B A (SR S e
EEREBIRE ©
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23. Share capital

24.

25.

Issued and fully paid:
2 ordinary shares

BEITREE

PR E B

23. Bg7s

Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein

for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statements of changes in equity.

Operating lease arrangements

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases certain buildings (note 13) under operating
lease arrangements. The leases are negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 6 years. The terms of the leases also require
the tenants to pay a security deposit.

At 31 March 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

24, #E

FEBAFERBEFEZ #HER
REEB 2T NIRERDETE

25. (EEHE%RH

(a)

ERETAA

FERRBEEHEZHEE
EF8F (sE13) - ZFHE
PR EZMBN FIFEEER
F - HEFRRITERBL A
ReERE °

R2017E38318 » AEEIRE
HEFAE ST 2 F A Bs s
FAENARRREEBAE LR
AREERHABERAT ¢

25. Operating lease arrangements (continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases its information technology facilities under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for these facilities are
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 month to 3 years.

As 31 March 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due
as follows:

25.

(3

EHERHE@®)

(b)

{EREFA

FEERECEHERZHEE
BBt - RSWFEPTZE
EZEBNF—EBRE=%F-

201743831 H » ZEBEIRE

AR RS EN R L RE
AR ES 4B EE R HR G R U
T

Within one year —FR 14,521,294 16,427,248
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ERLF(BEEE

maE) 10,783,651 25,304,945

25,304,945 41,732,193

26. Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments details in note 25

above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of

the reporting period.

26.

KR

bR £ XX MYEE255F il < S ETHE /R
b > AEBRIRE IR Z EARED

o

Contracted, but not provided for B4 > BREE 29,075,604 44,089,527
Within one year —FR 159,709,588 149,213,048
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_ERF (BEEE
M) 145,113,600 138,538,987
304,823,188 287,752,035
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27. Related party transactions

(a)

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of
the HKSAR via The Financial Secretary Incorporated. In
accordance with revised HKAS 24 “Related party disclosures”
issued by HKICPA, government-related entities and their
subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the Government of HKSAR
are defined as related parties of the Group. On that basis,
related parties include the immediate holding company and
its subsidiaries (other than the Company), other government-
related entities and their subsidiaries, other entities and
corporations in which the Group is able to control or exercise
significant influence and key management personnel of the
Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, approximately 3%
(2016: 3%) of the Group's revenue are rental income, building
management income and other facilities income derived from
the Government of HKSAR and other government-related
entities. All these services are conducted in the normal course
of business and in accordance with the Group'’s pricing policy.

The balances with the immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

27. BN R

(a)

TABABBRITHREEAFA
BRVBBAAREIEEZERE
B REEBEGHMAETRE
Tz eI BB G5t 2ERIF 24
SETRAEE SR EE ) ZARE > LA
ERRHTHEBFEZNE
BES) s HEERRNREEX
FEZBNERERRENE
A7 RERTERZ BB
73 o RIRAELE > Bl S B
ERERASKRENBAR (4
ATIRIN ~ BB ERAE R
REMBAT ~ A& EEEH
HAHMERTEEZHthERE
REEURAERZ TEZERE
AB o

EHZE2017E3831HIEEE » 2K
BEBIFRTBEB REM
BSEFAEE A A ~ 12
FEERAKREMZERAL
{EREBE U A 2 3% (20164 -
3%) ° FTAZEIRBIELESZE
BIBRERRAEE 2 EEHE
HEIT o

HERERATKRARNEA
B ZEERIIAEIER - 2B K
BREREE o

28. Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 March 2017

Financial assets

28. EENBISHERMIA

BRI EMITANRSIARZREE
LI

2017438318
ERIEE

Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or Available- Held-to-
loss - held for-sale maturity Loans and
fortrading  investment  investments receivables
LA
ftARER EE
FHEEBZ e )0l 8RR
EHEE KE KE FEhIE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
#T #BT #T #T
Deferred rental receivables ELENEE - - - 15738361 15,738,361
Available-for-sale investment OEHERE - 6,221,450 - - 6,221,450
Investments in securities EHRE 445,746,900 - 555,019,823 - 1,000,766,723
Trade receivables MR =R - - - 9,199,554 9,199,554
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATE[IRUE « 18K
deposits and other receivables HitEWEEY SREE - - - 14592979 14,592,979
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries N EE NGRS - - - 2348448 2,348,448
Cash and bank balances RERIRTER - - - 107,144,969 107,144,969
445,746,900 6,221,450 555,019,823 149,024,311 1,156,012,484
Financial liabilities EMafR

() No compensation was paid to the key management personnel € HFRA IERAEETFTEEE . .
of the Group in respect of their services rendered to the Group ANEmAREBIRMEZRFE TR . F.|r'|a'm:|al
) ) liabilities at
during the year (2016: Nil). WEZIEE (20164 @ ) o ;
amortised cost
YRS s
SIERZ
HRIAME
HK$
BT
Trade payables FE(TBRRX 35,472,265
Financial liabilities included in other payables st A EMIENTUBRETE R
and accruals =K 55,429,833
Rental and other deposits e REMRE 79,426,375
Amount due to the immediate holding company &I BEIZIEIG A TTIA 254,293,578
Obligations under a finance lease AEHEAE 3,672,831
428,294,882

142 Cyberport 2016/17 Annual Report BRESH 2016/17 4% 143



Notes to Financial Statements

MR

28. Financial instruments by category (continued)

31 March 2016

Financial assets

Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or
loss - held
for trading

BRARER
StAERR
KEEEZ
HK$
B

28. FEENBISHERMIR®

201653H31H

EWMEE

Available- Held-to-
for-sale maturity
investment  investments

L.oans and
receivables

EWR

HK$
BT

Deferred rental receivables EIEEIES - - - 14,690,545 14,690545
Investments in securities EHRE 316,287,667 = 647,261,433 - 963549,100
Trade receivables FEIERR - - - 4,669,867 4,669,867
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATB{IRUE e K
deposits and other receivables HtEWEIEZ SRIBE - - - 17072019 17,072,019
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries i EE NG EE - - - 1892385 1892385
Cash and bank balances RERiRT&ER - - - 185286364 185,286,364
316,287,667 - T8I 23611180 1187140280
Financial liabilities ol =L

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

BB A

SRR
EREE

Trade payables FE(TBRTR 45,693,220

Financial liabilities included in other payables st A EfthFE B EsTE R
and accruals TRAaE 24,621,250
Rental and other deposits S REMIEZS 717,001,592
Amount due to the immediate holding company &S BTN TIFIE 254,303,568
Obligations under a finance lease OB TR B A 5,759,154
407,378,784

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably

approximate to fair values, are as follows:

29. EMTAZARBERARE

EFH
FERSMIAZREERANEE
CREBEAABEIERAENSH
TRESNMT :

Carrying amounts Fair values
fRE(E AREE
2017 2017
HK$ HK$
B B
Financial assets EHEE
Available-for-sale investment AtHERSE 6,221,450 = 6,221,450 =
Investments in securities FARE 1,000,766,723 963,549,100  1,002,595,046 966,643,058
1,006,988,173 963,549,100  1,008,816,496 966,643,058
Financial liabilities =

Finance lease payables REHAERENE 3,672,831

5,759,154 3,672,831 5,759,154

The Group has assessed that the fair values of deferred rental
receivables, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, cash and bank
balances, balances with fellow subsidiaries and the immediate
holding company, trade payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, rental and other deposits approximate to its
carrying amount largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial asset and financial liability are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following method and assumption
were used to estimate the fair value:

The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale equity investment has
been estimated using the recent market transaction price.

The fair value of finance lease payable has been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group's own non-performance risk for
finance lease payables as at 31 March 2017 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The fair values of listed debt investments are based on quoted
market prices.

FEEBTEELREAEST B
R STATANFIR ~ mE R AR
MIAZ TRMEE - RERRTER
HERWBARKRERIERAT Z4E
B~ FEATERRR » St AEMAE(TRUIER
BstERZEMAR A RHEMZ
TZANBEAHKREERS > T2
MR ZETAREHREE -

TREEREREEZRAANBEUN
&7 B (s EEEVHERIN
ETHNENRSTRIRTANTTEA
iR o T ARBRERBIR At ARE
&

FLHAREERAKREZAREE
BRFITHHXZEFH A o

MEREERMNREZ ANEBEESA
ERER -« GERMKRG NEAES
89T B B A1 Al FARA =T IR FERA AR 2k
WEMEFTHEBEH o 1R2017F3831
B> AEERMERERGRIENS
BRETREE T G AT o

LB EBRAZ AR EERTDHRE
BB o
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29.

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy

of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2017

EMIRZARBERARE

EELSR @
DIEEER

TRETAERERITIANRAAEE

HESH

BASEBEAENEE !

4201753831H

Fair value measurement using

ARBEFAUTERE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

SRR BATHRE EATTHEZE

WA BANE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(F—1R) (B=fR) (B=4R)

HK$ HK$ HK$

i AT BT
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE - 6,221,450 - 6,221,450
Investments in securities EHERE 360,044,559 85,702,341 - 445,746,900
360,044,559 91,923,791 - 451,968,350

As at 31 March 2016 1#20165E3831H

Investments in securities EHKRE

Fair value measurement using

ARBERAUTRENE

Quoted prices
in active
markets

ERTERE

(Level 1)
(B—R)
HK$
BT

303,741,975

Significant
observable
inputs
EATHE
BARE
(Level 2)
(B
HK$

BT

12,545,692

Significant
unobservable
inputs
EATAIHE
BARE
(Level 3)
(B=#)

HK$

BT

316,287,667

29.

30.

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2017

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 March 2017.

As at 31 March 2016

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 March 2016.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2016: Nil).

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's principal financial instruments comprises
investments in securities, an available-for-sale investment and
cash and bank balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The Board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Details in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 16 to
the financial statements. The credit risk of the Group's other
financial assets, which comprise deferred rental receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, investments
in securities, available-for-sale investment, cash and bank
balances, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

29.

30.

EMIRZAREBEKRARE
EER @

ARBEFELR (E)
BAREBEN=ZENEE
12017438318

AREEP2017FE38 31 B I E(E A2
NAEEFENEREE o

2016%3831H

KREEF2016FE38 31 B E A2
NABEFENEHES o

FR ReRmEERSREENS
FREF _HELEFSBELAR
BETE TESARNBHE=R
(2016%F : #) o

A5 E R E IR B IR R R
() MFEARER

AEENTESTHRTAGESR
SRE - AJHUERENKRR
ERIBITET - ZFEMIA
NEIEZENEATEENEE
RHES -
FEESMTITEEENTER
BaEERR RBEL AR
RRERE -EFEBE R
EEERIBER AR EER
ZEBEREEAIT o

EE R

FEBFEERBREFRNE
o EH AVIRR AR A B
* o

BRI EEEUWEARRPTEE R
EERBRIFIBRERMBR
RMEE16 c FEBEMERE
E (BEEERWHESE « sTATR
IRIE ~ B KREMEWRIER
MEHMEE - BRERERBER
BIRIE ~ FEFRE  AIHHE
BRE - RERRTER BEE
EREERXZHFIEL » &
REBBEENRZELAENKRE
&
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of change in the value of
underlying individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investment classified as
available-for-sale investment (note 14) as at 31 March 2017.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair value of the equity investment to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period, with all other variables held constant and before any
impact of on tax. For the purpose of this analysis, in regards of
the available-for-sale investment, the impact is deemed to be
on the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve and
no account is given for factors such as impairment which might
impact the profit or loss.

Unlisted equity investment:
—BIHHE

- available-for-sale

JEEBIRAKE :

30. BEEARERBEIEREE @)

MR MRE R (1)
R fEm R

RERKRIEES A NEERE
RAE 5l 38 55 B B B = B & (E
RIREE o 72017438 31H » 2
SEEHENKERMRKE N
Ao HEEREN@ER KRR
= (MIzE14) ©

TREATRRESHARSERK
EEXEABNREREANE
BEE2810% (FFIEEMEER
RAREERSFTARRARNBRZE
A1) BIERLE © LD E -
BRI L ERBENTZERNR
AETHHEREEGRES
B> BX A st ARISER B8
BUREFRAR -

Carrying amount Change in
of investments equity*

REIREE e

HK$
#IT

6,221,450 622,145

* Excluding accumulated loss

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet
its current obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity
risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through operating cash flows and
advance from the immediate holding company.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

* TEIERE IR

mEE TR

BB RARIEAERREE
BIMNEREBHNER - &
BB EZRAREECES
BEERSRERERERA
BINBRMERTRRIRE RAH
HRET °

FEBRNBREEREREA
RBEIBRESEEZFE R » HBR
MRFEHNREMHE > mEH
KRR ESRE

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

30. MEEEREIREBERBE @)

MEEEBER (&)
mEBEEEE (E)

AEBERRSHERBBESOR
RO ERERIRABER
LN

Repayable
on demand/
less than 1 year 1to 2 years Over 2 years
BREREIE/
—FUF REME
HK$ HK$
BT i
Trade payables FETERTR 35,472,265 - - 35,472,265
Financial liabilities included in other  &F A ELIFE(I 3B R
payables and accruals EtERNSRER 55,429,833 - - 55,429,833
Rental and other deposits AeREMES 30,349,980 21,712,083 27364312 79,426,375
Amount due to the immediate e ERERAT
holding company 0L 254,293,578 - - 254,293,578
Obligations under a finance lease HEHAERIE 2,107,080 1,580,310 - 3,687,390
377,652,736 23,292,393 27,364,312 428,309,441

Repayable
on demand/
less than 1 year [ROVATEEIRS Over 2 years Total
REREE/
—ENTF MEL L a5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Trade payables FE(TRRR 45,693,220 - - 45,693,220
Financial liabilities included in other 5t AEFE(TFUIER
payables and accruals [EstBRNESREE 24,621,250 - - 24,621,250
Rental and other deposits e REMEE 34,424,802 16,991,792 25,584,998 77,001,592
Amount due to the immediate N ERERAR
holding company FE 254,303,568 = - 254,303,568
Obligations under a finance lease RUETRERIE 2,107,080 2,107,080 1580,310 5,794,470
361,149,920 19,098,872 27,165,308 407,414,100
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies 30. HAFEEISEIEBEREE @ 31. Statement of financial position of the Company 31. LEMBRRE
(continued) Information about the statement of financial position of the Company AT BTSRRI TR &S BRI E R}
(@) Financial risk factors (continued) ) BAEEBEE(E) at the end of the reporting period is as follows: (I
Currency risk ¥R
The Group's functional currency is Hong Kong dollars. The KEENEEK AR o K
Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through investment EEAENEERREEZRE
in securities that are denominated in other currencies, being NEMEE(FEAETEAR NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE
primarily United States dollars (‘USD”) and Renminbi (‘RMB"). M) SHERGESHRE c ARNBTT Property, plant and equipment ERE L 2,976,675,890 2995513860
As the Hong Kong dollars is pegged to the USD, the Group BEITHENE > REBRABIT Deferred rental receivables MLF?H&%H% 15,738,361 14,690,545
. . . _ I Investments in securities SR E 430,053,583 559,202,194
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between BZETTRINEREEH FEfERAK o . o gtV
e Home Ko dol § b USD (0 be insiant Investment in a subsidiary WEABIRE 1
the Hong Kong dollars and the to be insignificant.
greng o Total non-current assets JEREEERE 3,422,467,835 3,569,406,599
In respect of balances denominated in RMB, the Group ensures MUANBRESFENEEZMS l(;l\]::{tlci):ZSASSETS Egjgg 595.761 450,650
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by adjusting KEBZBRAEANREER T . %Q&EEW 9_199:554 4 669'867
the level of RMB denominated investments. B RRERE R R RR BRI Prepayments, deposits and FEATRIE ~ e R E MR
Pl KT © other receivables E/OL] 19,059,547 20,670,852
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries A EES NG 2,348,448 1,892,385
As at 31 March 2017, investment in securities denominated 2017438318 » UA RSt ,lﬁmounts due.from sgp5|d|ar|es Fﬁg;@iﬁaﬂﬁ 573';?2'?;; o 90;
, , N . . nvestments in securities Eickz s =1 713, 346,
; VFESRE A ;
in RMB amounting to HK$31,833,405 (2016: HK$101,128,675). BRY #&/\%31,833:403%75 Cash and bank balances 4 R 107,144,969 185,286,364
Management estimated that a 5% appreciation/depreciation (20164 : 101,128,675 7T) © Total : : B LB 715.857 841 617317 024
) N otal current assets y 4 ,857, 317,
of RMB against Hong Kong dollars would have decreased/ BB 0 ARERBITH P — ’;;EJEJ
i ' i B3 (5 £ 0, YS 3 ) 11 L R
increased the Gro%Jp s loss for the year and increased/ &/t ZTES/oH—J%—:SZZE%.E'JEF Trade payables RS BE 2R 35,472,265 45,693.220
decreased total equity by HK$1,591,670 (2016: HK$5,056,434). E51R L /18 0 e e e AR BB AN Other payables and accruals < 2B R ST ES 60,388,352 24 621 250
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign /R 1,591,670 7 75 (2016 4F - Rental and other deposits HEREMIZS 79,426,375 77,001,592
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial 5,056,434 7T) © BRLE D TR Amount due to the immediate holding company FE{EIZIZER A BIFIE 254,293,578 254,303,568
instruments which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at =5 51D BB =R @ B R E T st Obligations under a finance lease AEMREEE 2,095,355 2,086,322
the end of the reporting period. EZECAEERBESHRK Total current liabilities FEhE R ER 431,675,925 403,705,952
EINERBINTRTA o NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 284,181,916 213,611,072
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 48 EiHE& & 3,706,649,751 3,783,017,671
(b) Capital management (b) BEXREE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREAE
et i SEEEEE ,110, 214,
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to REBESAEENETEBES Eszﬁilt?ssrlnrir;tinrpear:r;ecr;afrl]cnedfund iﬁﬁﬁgﬁgi A0z, 110, 198 4;(2) g;g 332
. . i . A X JEREZ N 2 - ' )
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern RIS E B EELSAEES Obligations under a finance lease Eﬂzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁg 1,577,476 3472832
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for T 2 R B 75 2K 0] 3R K 2 EAth Total non-current liabilities JERE e (e 403.687.670 455862892
/. = /\IHL:\ ’ ’ ’ '
ther stakehold dt intai timal capital struct T E AN WA R ————
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure 0 & 5 AR F Al A 15 B T NS T 3.302,962,081 3307 154779
to reduce the cost of capital. No changes were made in the EHERGEE LU E AR T o,
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during KoFRN » BEATENBERE Share capital a7 2 2
=10 b = X
the year. BUR S AZ Pl A (T o Capital reserve B 5,363,136,217 5,313,056,351
Accumulated losses E5tEs1E (2,060,174,138) (1,985,901,574)
Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholder’s REENSAOERREDRR Total equity TR AREE 3,302,962,081 3,327,154,779

equity. Management reviews the capital structure periodically
and manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As at 31
March 2017 and 2016, the Group was in a net cash position.

FrE#D - BIEEEHRTE
REERE > TEXNERAEHE
BB AL o REER20174F
F2016F38 31 BHERIREF
REARST o

Lee George LAM
MRz
Director

EF

Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

BEE
Director

EF
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32. Approval of the consolidated financial statements 32. ZEESMEER
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised A EERRIN2017TEIB 26 HES
for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 September 2017. ERRETETAI S o

] 52 Cyberport 2016/17 Annual Report



